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It appears that as early as 1906, the congregation of the Lincolnton Baptist
Church considered building a new church on East Main Street. On 19 February
1907, N, W. Ross, F. A. Tobey, and J. 0. Allen, trustees of the church, acquired
lot #11 in Ward 1 of the North East Square of Lincolnton. This property, on the
northwest side of the 300 block of East Main Street, was acquired for $1,500
from B. F. Grigg. The congregation did not build on that lot, and
four-and-a-half years later, on 4 December 1911, the church trustees sold the
lot for $1,600 to the trustees of the Heidelberg (Emanuel) Reformed Church.
Emanuel Reformed Church was erected on this lot in 1913. The profits from the
sale are said to have been used in a renovation of the congregation's Water
Street church.

The congregation’'s increasing membership in the 1910s pressed the church leaders
to move toward the construction of a new church. Apparently, plans were
considered for the construction of a new building on the Water Street property;
however, they did not materialize.

The Reverend James Abner Snow (b. 1880) came as pastor of the Lincolnton Baptist
Church in 1917 and it was during his ministry, which continued to 1924, that the
site for a new church was acquired, plans secured, and this building was
erected. On 8 May 1919, C. L. Goodson conveyed lot #26 in the North East Square
of Lincolnton to the trustees of the First Baptist Church of Lincolnton: the
property was described in the deed as the 'Dews Place.'" The lot, located in the
north corner of East Main and Cedar Streets, extended the full depth of the
block along Cedar Street to Sycamore Street. It is the location of this
building and it is the property included in this nomination.

In 1919, the church hired James M. McMichael (1870-1944) to design their new
sanctuary. McMichael, a prominent Charlotte architect, was a specialist in
church design and prepared the plans for numerous churches in North Carolina.
It was probably by virtue of his reputation that he was selected to design the
First Baptist Church. It is also possible that members of the building
committee or the congregation were familiar with churches he had designed. His
design for the First Baptist Church in Forest City (1915) bears obvious
stylistic similarities to the design for the Lincolnton First Baptist Church,
The plans for the church, comprising sixteen sheets and dated to 1919, survive
in the J. M. McMichael Archives in Charlotte. The plans for the First Baptist
Church in Lincolnton were approved at a congregational meeting on 9 November
1919.

It appears that construction on the new church probably commenced early in 1920,
and the congregation must have expected to be in the newly completed building in
1922. Whatever the circumstances, the church had sold the Water Street church
building and in 1921 found itself with an incomplete building in which it could
not congregate. In an ironic turn of fate, the Baptist congregation returned to
the (1895) Emmanuel Lutheran Church at the corner of South Aspen and Church
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Streets which had been erected by Emmanuel Lutheran Church on the site of the
0l1d White Church. This building was occupied for worship in 1922.

The newly completed First Baptist Church joined the First Methodist Church on
East Main Street and became the second major Classical Revival-style building on
the avenue. Shortly thereafter, the Lincoln County Court House would be
completed on the square at the head of East Main Street, and Lincolnton could
boast three handsome Classical Revival style buildings.

The handsome church appears to have well served its congregation into the 1940s
when a larger membership and increased Sunday school activities called for an
expansion of the church plant. In 1950 the congregation decided upon the
erection of a major three-story educational building to the rear of the 1922
building. Construction was begun in the summer of 1950 and the completed
building was dedicated on 6 May 1951.

The congregation of the First Baptist Church occupied these premises until 1979
when it relocated to a newly-completed suburban church at 201 Robin Road.
Thereafter, the abandoned church was acquired by the county of Lincoln which, in
turn, leased the facility to Gaston College as an in-town campus. In 1987 when
it became known that the college would be vacating the former church discussions
arose concerning the possibility of converting it to a cultural arts center for
Lincoln County. The recently completed conversion of the former Claremont High
School in Hickory to the Arts Center of the Catawba Valley clearly influenced
the conversion. In 1988 a fund-raising campaign was undertaken which netted in
excess of $1.5 million. The $1 million dollar donation by the Timken Foundation
made the project possible. The Hickory architectural firm of CBSA Architects,
which had designed the former Hickory high school conversion into an arts
center, was hired for this project. The renovation was completed by
Moss-Marlow, general contractors, of Hickory, in the summer of 1991. The
building was opened to the public with ceremonies during the weekend of 13-15
September 1991.

In the renovation, the architectural fabric of the former sanctuary was
preserved and the space converted for performing arts and auditorium use. There
was virtually no change to the exterior of the sanctuary and little change to
the interior except to accommodate new mechanical, light, and sound systems.

The pews were replaced by fixed auditorium seating. Except for the addition of
a somewhat awkward solarium on the Cedar Street elevation of the educational
building, there was little change to the exterior of that later block of the
former church. The interior of the educational building was virtually
redesigned and rebuilt to provide museum and gallery exhibition spaces on the
first story; and offices, meeting, rooms, rehearsal, and related theater spaces
on the second and third stories. The bullding continues to house Lincoln
County'’s principal arts and cultural organizations and to provide performing and
meeting space for a broad range of activities and events.
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Footnote

1. The principal published source for the history of the (former) First Baptist
Church of Lincolnton is the centennial publication History of Lincolnton First
Baptist Church (1959). For an understanding of the architectural fabric of the
original church, the survival of the original plans for the building, comprising
a set of sixteen sheets, was invaluable. A photocopy was made available to the

author.
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9. Principal Biographical References

History of Lincolnton First Baptist Church., N. p., 1959.

Lincoln County Deeds, Office of the Register of Deeds, Lincoln County Court
House, Lincolnton, North Carolina.

Plans for the First Baptist Church, Lincolnton, North Carolina. James M.
McMichael, architect. 1919. Original in the J. M. McMichael Collection
Architectural Archives, Charlotte, North Carolina.

Sherrill, William L. Annals of Lincoln County. Charlotte: Observor
Printing House, 1937,
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10. Geographical Data

Verbal Boundary Description

The property included in this nomination is Parcel #4798 on Lincoln County Tax
Map 3623-16-94,

Boundary Justification

The boundaries enclosing this property comprise the acreage acquired in 1919 as
the site of the church and which continues to serve as the site and setting of
the present building.
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